
 

 
City of Pompano Beach, Purchasing Division 

1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C 
Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060 

 
May 28, 2013 
 

ADDENDUM #1, RFP H-37-13 
FIXED BASE OPERATIONS AT THE POMPANO BEACH AIRPARK PARCEL X 

 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
The deadline for receipt of sealed proposals has been extended to 2:00 p.m. (local), June 19, 2013, in 
the City’s Purchasing Office, 1190 N.E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. 
 
Please review the following questions and City responses regarding the above Request for Proposal 
solicitation. 
 
1. Land Bank (Para. 2 in the Introduction)- The City needs to provide further detailed clarification as to 

the specific FAA policies or regulations on land banking as mentioned in the Introduction Section of 
the Request for Proposal. 

 
 Response: With respect to Question #1, the FAA has advised that the granting of privileges to 

aeronautical service providers that amounts to “land banking” may constitute the constructive 
grant of an exclusive right. FAA policy is contained in Order 5190.6B, Airport Compliance Manual, at 
Section 8.7(b), which provides as follows: “When the service provider has space in excess of its 
reasonable needs and the sponsor claims it is justified based on the service provider’s future needs, 
the FAA may find the sponsor in violation of the exclusive rights prohibition if the service provider is 
banking land and/or facilities that it cannot put to gainful aeronautical use in a reasonable period of 
time and/or the vacant property controlled by the service provider denies a competitor from 
gaining entry onto the airport.” Section 8.9(d) of the Order essentially restates this policy. Apart 
from FAA policy, the City is permitted as the Air Park owner and operator to establish the 
requirements of the public solicitation to ensure the use of Air Park property that best advances the 
interests of the City and Air Park users. 

 
2. Environmental Materials- Need the City to provide any / all environmental studies, inspections, 

reports related to identifying any/all known environmental matters with the Parcel X. 
 
 Response: There are no environmental studies or reports that staff is aware of pertaining to this 

parcel. Proposer is responsible to conduct their own inspections and testing. 
 
3. Site Inspection-How can Sheltair personnel and it’s 3rd party engineers/contractors gain access to 

the Parcel X site to perform the necessary due diligence site evaluations and inspections.  
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Response: Interested parties must contact the City Attorney’s office (telephone 954-786-4614) to 
complete a hold harmless waiver before accessing the site; access to the site is available during 
normal business hours from 8am to 5pm Monday – Friday. 

 
4. Master Storm Water Drainage System: Can the City provide confirmation that the entire Parcel X 

drainage is now incorporated into the Air Park’s Master Storm Water Management Program. If so, 
please provide the appropriate documentation and/or drawings, permits etc. 

 
 Response: A copy of the Storm Water Permit and associated documents is posted with this 

addendum. 
 
5. Rental: For the purpose of this Parcel X RFP, please provide the Monthly Rent for the entire Parcel 

X? What is the Land Rent on a per. sq. ft. basis?  
 
 Response: Currently the lease rate for Parcel “X” is equal to the rental rates for the two existing 

FBO’s, Sheltair Aviation and Aviation Center of Pompano. This is currently .15 cents per square foot. 
If proposer is willing to provide additional rental revenue that would be considered.   

 
6. Fuel Flowage: For the purpose of this Parcel X RFP, what is the per. gallon Fuel Flowage Fee?  
 
 Response: The fuel flowage fee is the same as the flowage fee currently paid by the lone fuel 

provider on the field, Sheltair Aviation, .05 cents per gallon pumped. If the proposer wishes to 
increase the fuel flowage fee as part of the proposal that would be considered.  

 
7. Lease Commencement: Will the City provide a Construction Period within the Lease before any 

Rent is due and payable to the City? There is an approximate 6 month period required to design the 
project and obtain the necessary permits to commence construction. 

 
 Response: Lease payments start from the date of execution of the agreement by the City 

Commission. Leaseholder for the parcel has two years to construct at least 50% of the required 
capital expenditure with the remaining 50% to be completed by the end of the second two years. 
The same provisions are detailed in the FBO Minimum Standards Resolution 82-76 which is an 
exhibit in the RFP. 

 
8. Can the City provide an Exhibit that shows all the aeronautical runway and taxiway approaches, 

protection zones, building restriction lines, obstacle free areas and or safety and Part 77 surface 
areas in order for Sheltair to determine our site and building layout plans to ensure no conflicts 
exist.  

 
 Response: The proposer can find all of this information in the 2008 Airpark Master Plan Update that 

is available on the City web page at mypompanobeach.org. Click on Department link, click on Public 
works, Click on Airpark and the entire document can be found there.  

 
9. Will the City be providing the necessary fill material to provide the successful proposer a suitable 

site for development?  
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 Response: Currently there is approximately 15,000 CY of fill material available located on airport 
property for proposer to use if needed. Proposer will have to provide their own equipment for 
moving fill to the site. The fill material will be available for use until December 31, 2014; after this 
date the City anticipates issuing a solicitation to sell the clean fill to the highest bidder. 

 
10. Will the City be responsible for removing the various trees on Parcel X to provide the successful 

proposer a suitable site for development? 
 
 Response: No, propose/developer will be responsible for removing various trees to develop site. 

Any mitigation required due to removal of said trees will be the responsibility of the developer. 
 
11. Can the City provide the As-built construction documents for the inner perimeter security roadway, 

the fire hydrant locations as well as the location and capacity of the water and sewer systems up to 
the boundary of Parcel X. 

 
 Response: As built drawings for drainage, sanitary sewer, and reuse water mains are posted with 

this Addendum. 
 
12. The June 5th 2:00 pm deadline for submitting sealed proposals is a rather aggressive time line for a 

proposer to complete a thorough due diligence on the site and prepare a detailed Proposal 
Response. Would the City consider extending the Submittal Deadline for an additional 2 weeks?  

 
 Response: Via this Addendum, the deadline for submittals is extended to 2:00 p.m., June 19, 2013. 
 
13. Does the City have a “cone of silence” for talking to staff, City Officials, City Elected Officials or 

anyone representing the City? If so, please provide the effective date and time. 
 
 Response: The City does not have a cone of silence Ordinance. Our solicitations instruct interested 

parties to submit their questions in writing to Purchasing. Answers are provided via an addendum. 
Departments are discouraged from conducting private discussions with potential proposers while 
the City is in the process of requesting proposals. 

 
Proposers should acknowledge receipt of this Addendum in the area provided on the RFP Proposal 
Signature page. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Leeta Hardin 
General Services Director 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc: website 
 file 
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